
December 14, 2022 

VIA HAND DELIVERY & ELECTRONIC MAIL 

Luly E. Massaro, Commission Clerk 
Rhode Island Public Utilities Commission 
89 Jefferson Boulevard 
Warwick, RI  02888 

RE:  Docket No. 22-33-EE - 2023 Annual Energy Efficiency Plan 

Dear Ms. Massaro: 

Pursuant to the Public Utilities Commission’s (the “PUC” or “Commission”) request at 
the December 8, 2022 hearing in the referenced docket, please accept this response of Rhode 
Island Energy1 to two questions posed by the Commission: 

1. Whether to approve two different System Benefit Charges for effect January 1 and April 
1, 2023 to expedite the return of the existing Energy Efficiency fund balance to 
customers over the months of January, February and March 2023; and

2. Whether to decouple the Energy Efficiency budget from the approved System Benefit 
Charge for collection of the Company’s forecasted expenditures for 2023 so that the 
Company would collect some amount less than the forecasted expenditures.

The Company is agreeable to both proposals under the circumstances presented in this docket.  

1. Accelerated Return of Energy Efficiency Fund Balance

With respect to the approval of two seasonal rates, in order to expedite the return of the 
Energy Efficiency fund balance to customers, the proposed bifurcated rate structure would return 
the customers’ money to them more quickly than approval of a year-long rate that would return 
the fund balance to customers over the entirety of calendar year 2023. This accelerated fund 

1 The Narragansett Electric Company d/b/a Rhode Island Energy (“Rhode Island Energy” or the “Company”). 
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balance reconciliation would provide relief to customers at a time of year when heating costs and 
high electricity supply costs are felt keenly by customers. This, and other measures put in place 
in other dockets, have helped to mitigate the bill impacts of high gas commodity and electric 
supply costs during this winter.   

While the Company is supportive of the measures taken to date to assist customers, and 
the proposal made in this docket to expedite the return of the Energy Efficiency fund balance, it 
is important to understand that there are several charges and variables that will affect customers’ 
energy bills beginning on or around April 1. These include the reinstatement of gas and electric 
customer charges, the potential recovery of deferred customer charges, and updated rates 
stemming from the Company’s last resort service summer rates filing, gas and electric 
infrastructure, safety and reliability plans, annual retail rate filing, and renewable energy 
standard charge filing. The Commission’s selection of a rate design from among the scenarios 
presented in the Company’s response to Record Request 7 should be made in light of these 
known and unknown factors that could result in summer energy bills higher than customers 
might expect based upon experience in prior years. 

2. Approval of an Energy Efficiency Budget in Excess of Approved Collections 

The Company has been administering energy efficiency programs during a recent period 
of unprecedented uncertainty. The global pandemic, supply chain disruptions, inflationary 
pressures, rising energy costs and interest rates have contributed, and will continue to contribute, 
to uncertainty with respect to customers’ demand for measures incentivized through the Energy 
Efficiency program. This has led to a situation in which the Company and other stakeholders 
continue to pursue aggressive energy efficiency goals for reasons including avoided cost of 
supply and environmental benefits. At the same time, customers might be delaying decisions 
about energy efficiency measure adoption or market conditions may be leading to involuntary 
delays. The prevailing uncertainty and headwinds have led to underspending in recent years. 

In its second corrected response to PUC Data Request 1-1, the Division of Public Utilities 
and Carriers (“Division”) expressed that collections from customers should align with the 
spending necessary to meet customers’ demand for energy efficiency measures. In its response to 
the Commission’s questions dated December 12, 2022, the Energy Efficiency & Resources 
Management Council (“EERMC”) expressed its desire to maintain the robustness of the 2023 
Annual Energy Efficiency Plan. The Company shares both goals and believes that the proposal 
to temporarily decouple the Energy Efficiency Plan budget from collections is a reasonable 
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means of resolving a factual dispute over the appropriate forecast of energy efficiency 
expenditures in uncertain times. 

The Company supports this proposal due to the facts and circumstances present in this 
docket. As a general matter, a decoupling of collections and budgets in any rate setting context 
can lead to persistent under-recoveries that will eventually need to be recovered from customers. 
Additionally, customers have a limited but important ability to moderate energy consumption. If 
they receive inaccurate price signals they might not seek out ways to reduce their energy 
consumption including through the adoption of energy efficiency measures. Given that the 
Division’s proposal to reduce collections is a relatively modest portion of the total 2023 Energy 
Efficiency budget, such that any potential under-recovery would be relatively modest, the 
Company believes that customers will not be placed at undue risk by setting the approved 
collections through the System Benefit Charge at a level that is lower than the proposed 2023 
Energy Efficiency Budget. Therefore, it is the Company’s position that the Commission should 
approve the following budgets and collections for the 2023 Energy Efficiency Plan year: 

(a) (b) (c) 

Implementation Budget 
$(000) 

Total Budget  
$(000) 

Collections  
$(000) 

(1) Electric $99,375.4 $102,661.7 $98,286.3

(2) Gas $36,101.2 $36,898.0 $36,898.0

The proposed implementation budgets reflect those submitted in the Company’s November 29, 
2022 filing which it views as the most accurate forecast of 2023 implementation spending.2 The 
Company would propose to reconcile any under-recovery in next years’ annual Energy 
Efficiency filing, or, if an under-recovery become significant, through an interim System benefit 
Charge adjustment.  

2 The Company agrees that budgets and plans developed through the pre-filing stakeholder process ordinarily should 
not be changed, other than for the purpose of making corrections, until the Commission completes its review of an 
Energy Efficiency plan. Under the circumstances presented here, the Company’s November 29 revision was only 
intended to present the most realistic forecast of likely spending given the prior years’ underspending noted by the 
Division and the actual expenditures that have been occurring in 2022.   
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Thank you for your attention to this matter.  If you have any questions, please contact me 
at (401) 709-3359. 

Very truly yours, 

Steven J. Boyajian 
Enclosure 

cc: Docket 22-33-EE Service List 
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